The University of Dayton Alumnus, March 1946

University of Dayton Magazine

Follow this and additional works at: http://ecommons.udayton.edu/dayton_mag

Recommended Citation

This Book is brought to you for free and open access by the Marketing and Communications at eCommons. It has been accepted for inclusion in The University of Dayton Magazine by an authorized administrator of eCommons. For more information, please contact frice1@udayton.edu, mslangen1@udayton.edu.
The University of Dayton Alumnus

PROPOSED FIELD HOUSE

MARCH 1946
ALUMNI CONTRIBUTE
$2,100 IN DUES

Contributions amounting to $2,100.00 from 455 loyal alumni have been received by Mar. 19th as a result of the dues statements which were mailed to the alumni in January. This wonderful response is typical of the U. D. alumni spirit, but we are still a long way from that "grand" 1000 membership.

The following list includes the names of all persons who have made contributions since the last publication of donors in the December ALUMNUS.

A
Lt. Col. H. C. Anderton, Dayton, O.
Paul Antony, Oak Ridge, Tenn.
E. Raymond Arn, Jr., Dayton, O. $10.

B
Jos. C. Bach, Dayton, O.
Joseph A. Bachmann, Jr., Akron, O.
Thurston Batson, Cleveland, O.
Edwin S. Becker, Cincinnati, O.
Otto P. Belh, Cincinnati, O.
Frank G. Belanich, Euclid, O.
Lawrence A. Benz, Dayton, O.
Walter E. Berghoff, Ft. Wayne, Ind.
Else L. Biebler, Jr., Dayton, O.
Edward T. Bishop, Louisville, Ky. $10.
H. H. Bistine, Dayton, O.
Walter K. Blaine, Shavnee, O. $5.
W. A. Blake, Dayton, O. $5.
Clarence E. Biebler, Grosse Pointe, Mich.
A. Blumenthal, Chicago, Ill.
Mathias N. Blumenthal, Chicago, Ill.
Capt. L. F. Boeckerman, Dayton, O.
Louis G. Bohrner, Covington, Ky.
Charles H. Bosh, Dayton, O.
Dr. Urban H. Boll, Dayton, O. $5.
Mary Braun, Toledo, O.
Harry D. Breen, Crestline, O.
Harry A. Bremen, M.D., Dayton, O.
John J. Brennan, Lima, O.
W. A. Brennan, Lakewood, O.
Charles H. Brown, Dayton, O. $5.
Ernest O. Brown, Dayton, O. $5.
Lt. Eugene R. Brown, Dayton, O.
Jack R. Brown, Dayton, O.
R. C. Brown, Jackson Heights, N. Y. $5.
Carl H. Brunner, Bluefield, W. Va. $10.
Lawrence C. Bucher, Cincinnati, O.
Michael J. Burger, Murray Hill, N. J. $5.
A. J. Burgmeier, Dayton, O.
C.
Pat H. Cain, Nashville, Tenn.
Francis C. Cann, Dayton, O.
Harry F. Cappel, Dayton, O.
Lt. Col. John E. Carroll, Baltimore, Md. $5.
Virginia Carter, Dayton, O. $5.
Louis W. Clark, Sr., Dayton, O.
William C. Cline, Lima, O. $5.
Raymond A. Connor, Columbus, O.
Edward J. Connors, Dayton, O.
Mrs. Norman Connors, Dayton, O. $5.
John Tjos, Conoboy, South Euclid, O.
Capt. R. L. Cotterman, Stockton, Cal.
Thomas Court, York, Pa.
John L. Crowley, Avalon, Pa.
Rev. Francis T. Culley, Dayton, O.
Whelan W. Culley, Memphis, Tenn. $5.
Jack Curley, Glen Head, N. Y.
Arthur E. Dannin, Indianapolis, Ind.
Elizabeth O. Davley, Dayton, O. $5.
Irene Decker, Dayton, O. $5.
Dr. Leon J. Deger, Dayton, O.
Richard J. Deger, Dayton, O.
Thomas E. Deger, Grosse Ile, Mich.
Urban Deger, Dayton, O.
Joseph A. Dell, Fostoria, O.
C. B. Demann, Dayton, O. $5.
Henry K. Dexter, Dayton, O.
James T. Devaney, South Bend, Ind.
Rev. Joseph H. Dick, Chicksaw, O.
Frank J. Doorley, Dayton, O.
Richard D. Doyle, Akron, O.
Dr. John M. Duchak, Dayton, O.
Capt. Francis Duell, Camp Shanks, N. Y. $10.
Dr. Edward J. Duffy, Dayton, O.
Rev. G. W. E. Dunne, Toledo, O.
Wm. E. Dwyer, Bethesda, Md.
Charles A. Eberly, Columbus, O.
H. M. Eikenbary, Dayton, O.
Chas. F. Eisenhauer, Dayton, O.
Steve Emerick, Sr., Dayton, O.
Anthony Engelhart, Dayton, O.
Norman M. Englert, Dayton, O.
William P. Epperson, New York, N. Y.
Kay Kunka Ederl, Dayton, O.
John M. Ewalt, Amberst, O.
Lt. James T. Fenton, Dayton, O.
Herbert M. Finke, Dayton, O.
Lt. James H. Finke, Dayton, O.
Paul R. Finke, Dayton, O.
Raymond L. Fitz, Cuyahoga Falls, O.
William P. Fitzgibbon, Glen Cove, N. Y.
William F. Flanagan, Dayton, O.
Walter J. Fleck, Tiffin, O.
Joseph F. Fletcher, Dayton, O.
George T. Flynn, M.D., St. Louis, Mo. $5.
William Flynn, St. Louis, Mo. $5.
Elmer J. Focke, Dayton, O.
Walter H. Focke, Dayton, O.
Lt. Ellsworth T. Foland, Dayton, O.
Thomas R. Foley, Franklin, O.
Richard T. Frankensteen, Detroit, Mich. $5.
Benj. W. Freeman, Cincinnati, O.
Charles F. Freeman, St. Louis, Mo.
J. G. Freeman, Dayton, O.
Lt. Chas. Freer, Dayton, O.
Dwight R. Freidline, Dayton, O.
Mrs. Grace A. Garcia, New York, N. Y. $5.
Manuel L. Garlikov, Dayton, O.
Earl E. Gehbhart, West Carrollton, O.
George L. Geisler, Jr., Columbus, O.
L. C. George, Dayton, O.
Elvera V. Gephart, Dayton, O.
Landis Gephart, Dayton, O.
Roman A. Gerlerch, Mansfield, O.
Charles H. Gerwels, Dayton, O.
M. J. Gibbons, Jr., Dayton, O.
Morris M. Gitman, Dayton, O.
Leo B. Glasser, Dayton, O.
Irvin V. Gleim, Wilmington, Del.
John F. Gleem, Detroit, Mich.
Thomas H. Glick, Tiffin, O.
Lee J. Goesling, Cleveland, O.
C. H. Goiger, Dayton, O.
James J. Grace, M.D., Springfield, Mass.
Robert E. Gray, Dayton, O.
William Greenwell, Owensboro, Ky. $10.
David L. Grimes, Dayton, O.
James E. Grimes, Chicago, Ill. $5.
Philip L. Grimes, Huntington Park, Cal.
M. V. Grisez, Canton, O.
Dr. Gerald C. Grout, Dayton, O.
Fred P. Grundish, Los Angeles, Cal. $5.
Rev. George Gude, Norwood, Ohio.

H
John J. Hacker, Ironont, O.
John W. Hackett, Jackson, Mich. $5.
Carl J. Hahn, Cleveland, O.
W. P. Haley, D.D.S., Dayton, O.
Joseph F. Hammern, Fort Wayne, Ind.
Louise Hammond, Dayton, O.
Rev. John T. Hannaham, North Star, O.
M. Herbert Hanngan, Tarentum, Pa.
Mrs. Joseph H. Harrington, Dayton, O.
Harry J. Hartke, Jr., Cincinnati, O.
HOLD TRADITIONAL ST. PAT’S PARTY

ACTIVE ON THE COMMITTEES FOR THE ST. PATRICK’S DAY DINNER sponsored by the mechanical engineering department were: seated left to right, seniors Fred Henne and Dave Borchers; standing are Lawrence Jhn ’43, and Gerald Risacher.

E. C. Litkowski, Dayton, O.
Rodney M. Love, Dayton, O.
Edmund C. K. Lum, Chicago, Ill.
Newton J. Lumm, Dayton, O.

M
Polly Mack, Dayton, O.
Rita Magoto, Troy, O.
Emmet Mahler, Versailles, O.
Louis R. Mahr, Dayton, O.
Lt. Col. Louis W. Makley, Dayton, O.

Trorrence A. Makley, Sr., Dayton, O.
Robert E. Maloney, Dayton, O.
V. D. Maloney, Ottawa, O.
Frances L. Markus, Dayton, O.
George W. Markus, Chicago, Ill.—$5.
Margaret Ann Markus, Dayton, O.
Frank H. Marshall, Sidney, O.
Orrie Francis Martino, Philadelphia.
Louis M. Marzluft, Los Angeles, Cal.—$5.

Wm. E. Mayer, Cleveland, O.
Betty Mayl, Dayton, O.
Eugene A. Mayl, Dayton, O.
J. E. Mayl, Akron, O.
J. Ellis Mayl, Dayton, O.
Louis J. McAnespie, Dayton, O.
Frank E. McBride, Dayton, O.
Robert D. McClear, Detroit, Mich.
Earl P. McClosky, Dayton, O.
Anne O’Hare McCormick, New York, N. Y.—$5.

Arthur P. McDonald, M.D., Dayton, O.
Lt. (j.g.) Chas. McFarland, Dayton, O.
Robert McIntyre, Jr., Xenia, O.—$5.
Thos. A. Medley, Jr., Owensboro, Ky.—$25.

John A. Medley, Owensboro, Ky.—$5.
Dorothy A. Meyer, Fort Loramie, O.

Edward M. Miller, Chicago, Ill.—$5.
Robert C. Miller, Maple Hts., O.
Edward A. Millonig, M.D., Dayton, O.
Wm. F. Montavon, Washington, D. C.
Henry D. Monty, Jr., Dayton, O.—$5.
Sen. Harold D. Moody, Dayton, O.
Daniel J. Moran, Houston, Texas.
Martin F. Moritz, Mansfield, O.—$10.

Melvin J. Mueller, Belleville, Ill.
Lawrence R. Mulcahy, Kew Gardens, N. Y.
Joe Mulhall, Owosso, Mich.—$10.
Howard A. Mullen, Dayton, O.—$5.
Gale G. Murphy, Dayton, O.
Lt. John E. Murphy, Chicago, Ill.
Joseph B. Murphy, Dayton, O.
Robert E. Murphy, Chicago, Ill.
Rev. Christopher P. Murray, Knoxville, Tenn.
Paul G. Muth, Dayton, O.

Joe O. Neuhoff, Dallas, Texas.
Andrew E. Nickol, Baltimore, Md.

O
Emma Louise Odum, Dayton, O.—$5.
Alice E. Ohmer, Dayton, O.
Ruth M. Ohmer, Dayton, O.
William C. Olsen, Osborn, O.
Margaret E. O’Neil, Dayton, O.
Theo. H. Oppenheim, Coldwater, O.

P
Shirley W. Padley, Dayton, O.
John J. Padley, Dayton, O.
Joseph D. Park, Wilmington, Del.—$5.
James G. Parker, M.D., Delaware, O.
Betty Wood Parsons, Dayton, O.
U. D. FIELD HOUSE TO BE ERECTED IN SPRING '47

Alumni Dream To Become Reality

Alumni will welcome the news that the long awaited University of Dayton field house moved a step nearer realization with the recent public announcement by Rev. George J. Renneker, president, that construction of the $300,000 building will begin in the spring of 1947. Seating 4800, the field house will fill a long-standing need of the University for adequate facilities for indoor athletics and student assemblies. In addition, it will be made available for high school and industrial league games, other amateur athletics, professional basketball games, exhibitions, and conventions.

The new field house will be 167 x 175 feet and equal a five story building in height. It will replace the old gymnasium, built in 1873, one of the finest in Ohio at the time but outgrown and inadequate today.

Constructed of brick, stone trimmed, and colored to harmonize with the other buildings of the campus, the field house will occupy a site on Alberta St., north and west of the U.D. stadium, west of St. Joseph's hall, and south of the Albert Emanuel Library.

According to plans drawn by architects Arthur R. Geyer and George T. Neufer, the building will be of steel skeleton construction with clear span roof trusses 163 feet long, giving all spectators an unobstructed view of the playing floor. The floor, of maple flooring laid over waterproofed concrete, 100 x 135 feet, will be large enough to allow two practice basketball courts or one professional size court and folding seats for 2100 spectators.

Permanent stands surrounding three sides of the playing floor will seat 2700. Folding seats on the playing floor around the court will increase the seating capacity to 4800. For assemblies and other activities such as boxing matches that require less floor space an additional 1200 seats may be placed on the playing floor.

The general public will pass through the front entrance on the Alberta St. side. Three ticket windows will be located at each end of the front vestibule. A series of doors will lead to the lobby and concession stand and to the stairs leading up to the stands.

Offices of the physical education directors and officials, two class rooms, and locker, shower and toilet rooms are on the ground floor. A medical room will be provided in the southeast corner of the building near the stadium. Public smoking rooms and toilets will be located on the intermediate floor just below the stands. Doors in the tile wall surrounding the playing floor lead to the corridors.

The roof will be fireproof, insulated, and acoustically treated. The corridors and lobby will also have acoustically treated ceilings.

KUNTZ LEADS DRIVE

The financial campaign to build the new field house began quietly in 1942 when a group of alumni met at the home of Martin Kuntz. C. H. Gosiger, Harry Cutler, Harry Mack, Henry Malloy, J. Ellis Mayl, and David Margolis were also in the original group, later joined by others including, Syl Deminger, Charles Eisenhauer, Charles Whalen, who headed our alumni campaign, Eugene Mayl, and representatives of the University including Rev. John A. Elbert, president of U.D. until 1944.

An executive committee was formed with Martin Kuntz, chairman; Harry Cutler, vice-chairman; Clarence Gosiger, treasurer; Eugene Mayl, secretary; and Harry Baujan and R. C. Brown, assistant secretaries.

The money has been raised quietly, with no public solicitation, and public announcement of the plans were withheld until approximately $200,000 was collected and prospects for raising the other $100,000 were bright. If an additional $80,000 is obtained, the building will be constructed with stands on all four sides of the playing floor and a total seating capacity of 6,000. Labor and material costs were too high to begin construction this spring.

The alumni contribution to date has been less than hoped or ex-
COMMITTEE SEEKS FURTHER ALUMNI SUPPORT

expected. However, it is hoped that the alumni will respond more generously in securing the additional funds. Send in your contributions either to the Alumni Office or the athletic office and help complete the Field House.

Father Rennek, in his statement on the U.D. field house said in part: "Physical and health education, including recreational and competitive sports, are vital to every individual, to a community, and to the country. The University of Dayton has always endeavored to provide for this need in its educational program. . . . In this post-war period, the development of the physical faculties of our young people must continue to be stressed. To attain this objective more efficiently, an adequate gymnasium is necessary.

". . . During very recent years, a number of friends of the University, deeply conscious of this need, have formed themselves into a voluntary committee for raising funds sufficient to erect a University of Dayton Field House . . . . Through the efforts of this Committee, companies and individuals have made substantial donations to this fund so that the University feels that it can now announce to the citizens of Dayton that as soon as possible a field house can be built, possibly some time in 1947.

"Not only the University, its Administration, Faculty and student body, both present and future, but also the citizens of Dayton owe great gratitude to this committee and to the donors . . . ."

PUBLIC REACTION

Announcements concerning the new field house made front page head lines in local papers and were greeted enthusiastically by civic leaders, sports' lovers, faculty, alumni, and students alike. Mayor Edward Breen, '30, announced: "The people of Dayton should be delighted to hear that their University's dream of a field house will soon be a reality, just a matter of months away. The University of Dayton field house will be of city-wide benefit and interest and the citizens of Dayton can take pride in this announcement."

Paul Williams, managing director of the Dayton Chamber of Commerce stated: "We in Dayton are proud of our University and the educational and cultural opportunities it affords. That it proposes to add to its plant and to provide facilities that will increase its efficiency and broaden its program is evidence of the progressive spirit that has been one of its great characteristics."

COACH ENTHUSIASTIC

Harry Baujan, athletic director and head football coach, asserted: "... Because of this vision and loyal support of a group of friends of the University who realized our need for such a building, we are getting ready to construct a field house to satisfy both the needs of the University of Dayton and the City of Dayton. Our hopes are high and our gratitude is great."

Martin Kuntz, '12, chairman of the field house committee and member of the Athletic board, stated: "I became interested in the project of a new field house for U. D. when I became aware of the need for such a building both for the University and the city of Dayton. The University needs it for its educational program. In the character building of youth, activities along athletic lines are of prime importance. The youth need an outlet for their energies. The City of Dayton needs such a field house too, to accommodate amateur athletics."

STUDENT OPINION

Bill Ginn, whose 245 points this season broke an all-time U.D. scoring record, voiced the typical student opinion: "The new field house sounds great to me. I'm just a freshman now and by the time I'm a junior U.D.'s team should be playing on their own floor and I hope to be on that team. By having our own field house we will be able to schedule more games with better schools."

The Dayton Herald commented editorially: "... We congratulate the University of Dayton as the recipient of such a welcome gift. To those responsible for it we can but add—'Well done.'"
Class Notes

1911—J. D. Polley, Colonel, U. S. Army is home on terminal leave pending his discharge in May. Col. Polley has been on active duty for four years and nine months.

1915—Father Francis Culley who celebrated the 25th anniversary of his ordination to the priesthood, was honored at a banquet held at the St. Joseph Orphans home. He served there ten years before going to Holy Angels, Dayton, as pastor. Leon Anderson has established his residence in Albany, Calif.

1922—Rev. Monsignor R. Marcellus Wagner, pastor of St. Lawrence's church, Cincinnati, offered a Solemn High Mass at the parish church, Sunday, Mar. 17, in observance of his 30th anniversary of his ordination to the priesthood. Sympathy is extended to the family of A. J. Stuhlmueler, Hamilton, O., who died recently.

1927—Capt. Ed. W. Sachs, after 41 months in the service, has been placed on inactive army status at Morrison Field, ATC's key Caribbean Wing Base. He served overseas with the ATC on Ascension Island, British West Indies, in the Base Hospitals. Dr. Sachs plans to resume his practice in Dayton after his discharge.

1928—Clarence A. Friemering was a campus visitor. He is now living in Buffalo, N. Y. James J. Grace, M.D., was discharged from the Army in February after 40 months' service. He met Bob Swan on Okinawa. Paul J. Meiners is now in Ft. Lauderdale, Fla. Ralph I. Nock was a recent campus visitor.

1929—Joseph E. Keller, member of the law firm of Dow, Lohnes and Albertyn, in Washington, D. C., has written an article on “Austin’s Position in Modern Jurisprudence” for the District of Columbia Bar Journal. This article is of particular interest because of the adaptation of much of Austin’s theory in connection with the work of the United Nations organization.

1930—Maj. and Mrs. Paul Moorman have announced the birth of a daughter, Paula, at Hendricks Field, Sebring, Fla.

1932—Maj. Malcolm J. Tear, M.D., formerly a medical officer of the Army Air Forces has been honorably discharged and is resuming his practice at his former office in Detroit. R. Frank Donley, M.D., also recently returned from military service, announces the opening of his office in Columbus, O.

1933—E. F. Zimmerman was discharged in January and is affiliated with the Continental Finance Co., Dayton. Lt. Col. and Mrs. Nelson I. Decker are now residing in Colorado Springs, Colo. Lt. Comdr. Chas. S. Heldoerfer, released from active duty in the naval service, was awarded the Secretary of the Navy's commendation ribbon. The award was made for service while on duty in the Bureau of Ships, electronic division. Since his return to civilian

(Continued on Page 8)

Theodore A. Sharpener, Aurora, Ill. $5
Mary Shuy, Dayton, O.—$5
Vincent M. Shields, Tucson, Ariz.
Lt. Joseph M. Shimaneck, LaGrange, Ill. $5
Leo Showel, Toledo, O.
Arthur L. Shroyer, Dayton, O.
Robert A. Shultz, Dayton, O.
Bernard F. Sieben, Chicago, Ill.—$10
Lt. A. Sieve, Dayton, O.
Rev. F. Smith, Cincinnati, O.
Merle P. Smith, Dayton, O.
George F. Smyth, Inglewood, Cal.
Pual Stagner, Chattanooga, Tenn.
Maj. Henry Stang, Dayton, O.—$5
Jean C. Stapenhorst, St. Louis, Mo.
John C. Steinlage, Jr., University City, Mo.—$10
Mother M. Stephania, M.S.C., Bernharts, Pa.—$814.
Walter J. Stephens, Akron, O.
William E. Stoeklein, Dayton, O.
Lawrence W. Stratner, New Rochelle, N. Y.
F. G. Stroop, Dayton, O.
A. J. Strohside, Cleveland, O.
William L. Struck, Dayton, O.
In Memory Of
Lt. Richard L. Strugare, Toledo, O.

Carl C. Stuben, Akron, O.
Dr. C. F. Stuhlmueler, Hamilton, O.
Charles Sucher, Dayton, O.—$5
Louis A. Sucher, Dayton, O.—$10
Al T. Suttman, Batesville, Ind.
Emmett F. Sweetman, Urbana, O.

T
Lt. Marvin Talmage, Dayton, O.
Mrs. Jayne Williams Taylor, Dayton, O.
Betty Jean Thomas, Ludlow Falls, O.
Mark R. Thompson, St. Louis, Mo.
James W. Tiry, M.D., Anna, O.
David Tom, Urbana, Ill.
John W. Torpey, Forest Hills, N. Y.

U
Robert J. Uehling, Cleveland, O.—$5
Adele Louise Unverferth, Dayton, O.
Lt. Col. John E. Unverferth, Dayton, O.
Capt. Robert H. Unverferth, Dayton, O.
Michael J. Usas, Valparaiso, Ind.

V
Rev. Martin M. Varley, Springfield, O.—$5
Capt. Edmund M. Velten, St. Louis, Mo.—$5
Hilltop Happenings

AROUND THE CAMPUS . . . The first signs of spring have appeared on the campus and U. D. activities are in the lenten lull. . . . Harry Baujan, football coach, and Jim Carter, basketball coach, addressed club members of the Agonis Club at the Miami Hotel. . . . Sigma Delta Pi, premedical society, recently initiated new members. Miss Margaret Carroll, '45, medical technologist was the speaker. . . . The annual St. Patrick's party for the U. D. coeds was held Mar. 13, in the women's lounge, and was sponsored by Alpha Rho Tau, art division coeds club. Rita McGarry was general chairman. The program was furnished by Jeane Worman, Madeleine Unger, Joan Oehl, and Winifred Coates. Eileen Quinlisk had charge of decorations, and was assisted by Jeanette Stoecklein and Dorothy Kuhn. Miss Betty Mayl is faculty adviser. . . . Dr. Edward A. Huth attended the seventh annual convention of the American Catholic Sociological Society in Cleveland. O. Some of the topics discussed were minority problems, labor relations, population problems, the family and race relations. . . . Milton Wohl, concert master for the Dayton Philharmonic orchestra, and Peggy Altenberg, who has appeared with the Dayton Philharmonic, presented a musical program at a recent student assembly. Wohl was a member of the All-American Youth orchestra touring South America under the direction of Leopold Stokowski: . . . Dr. K. C. Schrta, associate professor of math and president of the National Mathematics Honor Society of Secondary Schools, conducted installation rites of the Duns Scotus Mathematics Club chapter at Our Lady of the Angels high school, St. Bernard, O. Kay Ens and King Bradow represented the U. D. Math Club. . . . Dr. E. B. O'Leary, head of the departments of Business Organization and Economics, addressed the National Association of Ice Cream Manufacturers at the Sinton Hotel in Cincinnati. He also appeared recently on the winter program of the American Marketing Association, Clapole Hotel, Indianapolis. . . . Lt. Joseph G. Phelan, former instructor in the department of psychology, and Miss Elizabeth Marie Schadauer were married at the Church of the Holy Innocents in Brooklyn, N. Y. . . . Upsilon Delta Chi, home economics club, has recently been admitted into both the national and state home economics associations. Miss Margaret O'Connor, professor of clothing at Miami university, addressed the last meeting. . . . Joan Sides, art student, presented a musical and dramatic program for the Dayton Co-Operette Club luncheon meeting. . . . Five members of the U. D. International Relations club represented the university at the second annual institute of international relations for college students at Wooster. Those taking part were Sam DeHart, president, Myra Boland, Don Kreitzer, Mary Rose Keville, and Mary Frances Kavanaugh. . . . Dr. John Perz, Spanish teacher and head of the modern language department, reviewed Latin-American literature at a recent public meeting of the Pan-American club in Dayton. . . . Sixteen certificates were awarded to those who successfully completed the Advanced Industrial Safety Course as outlined and administered by Bro. Andrew R. Weber at the U. D.

Letters from the Alumni

Last December with the prospects of the arrival of new faculty members to the staff, all Alumni in the city of Dayton were contacted by Bro. Elmer Lackner, former Alumni secretary, regarding the possibilities of housing, either temporary or permanent. This very unusual reply was received recently.

No Housing Problem

Feb. 1, 1946

Bro. Elmer C. Lackner, S.M.
Acting Head, Div. of Arts,

Dear Sir:

This is to acknowledge the receipt of your letter, dated the 27th of December; contents duly noted and appreciated.

I want you to know that I am sympathetic to the position that you find yourself in, and am willing to aid you in any way that I am able.

We have here at the present a quite a problem. Not an any way that I am able.

We have here at the present a quite a problem. Not an any way that I am able.
status, he has been engaged in the establishment of a contracting and engineering service organization for industrial electrical power and electronic controls.

1934—Maj. I. L. "Larry" Libeck visited the U. D. recently. Larry is spending his terminal leave at the home of his parents after 43 months in service, most of which was spent in Alaska. After April 1, Dr. Libeck will return to his pre-war position on the surgical resident staff at Ohio State University. Geo Neubrand has established his residence in Toledo, O. Mrs. Jeanette McCann has moved from Arlington, Va., to New Rochelle, N. Y. The chemical engineering class of '34 will hold its annual Easter dinner at the Seville Restaurant in Dayton, Saturday, April 20. Among those taking part are "Doc" Wohlleben, Richard Carson, Richard Fortener, Lawrence Hibbert, Thomas Nealon, Donald New, Reuben Saeks, and Robert Schantz.

1935—Congratulations are extended to Mr. and Mrs. Todd Mumma on the birth of their daughter, Jane Ellen. Capt. Roland C. Duell is now living in Crews, Virginia. Bob Kawka has been discharged from the army, and living in Buffalo, N. Y.

1936—Dan O'Keefe, recently separated from the army with the rank of lieutenant colonel, has accepted an executive appointment with the Veterans' Administration. Mr. O'Keefe was trained in veterans' administration duties and will be assigned to the Cincinnati headquarters serving Ohio, Kentucky and Michigan. Lt. Col. Ralph Comners was a campus visitor.

1937—Capt. Jerome P. Hochwalt has been appointed chief doctor of the Camp Shanks, N. Y., Medical division. He was overseas 18 months in New Caledonia and New Hebrides. Jack C. O'Brien is in Sandusky, O.

1938—Congratulations are extended to Mr. and Mrs. Wm. J. Sachs on the birth of their son. Dick Bucher has been released from active duty. R. F. Plister is working with Goodyear Rubber in Mexico. Lt. Col. R. J. Boerner is on terminal. He is employed by L. Allen and Sons, O'Fallen, Ill., in the capacity of sales manager.

1939—Jim Pfum, another civilian, is affiliated with the Pennsylvania Industrial Chemical Corporation at Clairton, Pa., as assistant to the plant chemical engineer. Mr. and Mrs. Norman Trost are being congratulated on the birth of a son, Fred Douglas. Rev. and Mrs. Roy A. Goss announce the birth of a son, Robert Alton on Mar. 11.

1940—James Leonard was a recent campus visitor. Adrian C. Dailey is now associated with the Hyland Machine Co., as sales engineer. Capt. Melvin J. Mueller is on terminal leave, having served as an aircraft maintenance officer. He is working in St. Louis as a sales engineer at the Nooter Boiler Works Co. Mr. and Mrs. Larry Knorr are being congratulated on the birth of a daughter, Christine Ann. John J. Eilers has established his residence in Baltimore, Md. Mr. and Mrs. Wise Glossinger announce the birth of a daughter, Christy.

1941—Marilyn Turner and Capt. Harold H. Bistline have announced their engagement. A son, Gerald Andrew, was born to Mr. and Mrs. Clem J. Young, Jr., recently in St. Louis. Clem was discharged from service. Lt. Max L. Wool has been assigned to the army of occupation forces in Germany. Lt. (j.g.) Charles M. McFarland is home on leave from Pacific duty. He and Mrs. McFarland and their daughter were campus visitors. Mr. and Mrs. Francis M. Schurr announced the birth of a son. Mr. and Mrs. Joseph Wohlschlaeger announced the arrival of Sandra Jean, Mar. 10.

1942—Mr. and Mrs. Norman Hanselmann (Dorothy E. Kaiser) announce the birth of a son, William Callen. Lt. and Mrs. Bob Stacy were recent campus visitors. Bob has just returned from duty on Okinawa. While there he talked to Joe Overwein, '43, on the phone. Temporarily the Stacys are living in Cincinnati. Maj. Robert L. Butler has been released from service and is affiliated with Chrysler Airtemp Corporation. Lt. Chas. W. Schu is on duty with the Plans and Control Section, U. S. Army at Hochst, near Frankfurt-am-Main, Germany. At a conference there he met Col. David R. Kerr, Inf., who was chief of the military science department at the U. They hadn't seen each other for about five years. Major Richard C. Hirt has been appointed to the Officers' Engineering School at Wright Field. Dick was a recent campus visitor. Also among the campus visitors was Gene Linskert. Capt. and Mrs. Earl R. Giesman announce the birth of a son. Capt. and Mrs. "Hank" Rechtien were campus visitors. Hank is on terminal leave.

1943—Lt. Paul W. Herking is assistant property officer of the Ravena Arsenal at Apco, Ohio. John W. Wroe was recently discharged. Lt. (j.g.) Jack L. Wohler has completed training at the Newport Naval Training Station as a crewmember of the USS Tarawa, an aircraft carrier soon to be commissioned. Frank Doorley has been discharged from active duty. Marc Dunnam has been discharged and is now working in the rocket lab at Wright Field. Bob Becksted has been graduated from medical school. Al Bagot is stationed in Tokyo. Miss Clementine Vocke and Lt. Robert Schmidt were married in St. Anthony's church, Dayton. Mrs. Lucy Selig is teaching German at Wilmington College, Wilmington, O. Paul Kispersky was a campus visitor. Paul Engle was discharged from the Navy as Lt. (j.g.), and recently visited the campus. Ellsworth Foland was promoted to rank of first lieutenant. Manuel L. Garlikow was a campus visitor. Mary Ferris also was a campus visitor, and is working for the War Relocation department in Washington, D. C. George Geisler is discharged and now working in Cleveland, O.

1944—Capt. Charles Keller was discharged and visited the U. Miss L. Marguerite Sullivan and Lt. George F. Davis, USNR, were married in St. Bridge's church in Watervliet, N. Y. Alex Schoen was a campus visitor following his discharge from service. George Igel also is listed among our campus visitors. He is studying civil engineering at Notre Dame. Joan Dodsworth stopped in to say "Hello." She is studying medicine at Loyola. Mark F. Moots has completed his junior year in the Georgetown University School of Medicine.

1945—Larry "Smoky" Davis, Marine, was a campus visitor. "Frenchy" LaFleur is stationed on Guam. Sgt. Robert D. Funke is stationed at Augsburg, Germany.